
County of Fairfax, Virginia 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: July 25, 2023 

TO: Consumer Protection Commission 

FROM: Rebecca L. Makely, Director 
Department of Cable and Con umer Services 

SUBJECT: Consumer Protection Commission Meeting for August 1, 2023 

Please find attached the Consumer Protection Commission meeting packet. The next scheduled 
meeting is Tuesday, August 1, 2023, at 7:30 p.m. in Conference Room 232 of the Government 
Center, 12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia. 

Please RSVP with your attendance to Susan Jones by COB on Monday, July 31, 2023, at 
Susan.Jones@fairfaxcounty.gov or 703-324-5877. 

Enclosures 

cc: Ellicia Seard-McCormick, Deputy County Executive 

Susan C. Jones, Consumer Specialist III 
Department of Cable and Consumer Services 

Department of Cable and Consumer Services 

12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 433 

Fairfax, Virginia 22035-0045 

Phone 703-324-5949 Fax 703-653-1310 TTY 711 

www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/  



FAIRFAX COUNTY 
CONSUMER PROTECTION COMMISSION 

August 1, 2023 AGENDA 
 
 
Call to Order by the Chairperson (7:30 PM) 
 
Remote Participation Motions 
 
Minutes 
 

• Approval of the draft June 20, 2023, meeting minutes  
 
Report of the Director 
 
 
Old Business 
 

• CPC Collaboration 
• Review and consideration of CPC Subcommittee proposal 

 
New Business 
 

• FY 2023 Annual Report 
• Identity Theft Resource Center Presentation 

 
Commissioner Matters  
 
 
Report of the Chairperson  
 

•  
 
General Interest 
 

• Consumer Protection Commission Calendar 
• Consumer Protection Commission Membership  
• Community Outreach 
• Consumer Resources 
 



 
 

Minutes of the Fairfax County Consumer Protection Commission 
 

June 20, 2023                            7:30 PM  
       Government Center 
       12000 Government Center Parkway 
       Fairfax, VA 22035 

Chairperson Kratovil, presiding 
 

Attendance: Commissioners: Belkowitz, Freedenthal, Kirk, 
Kharat, Kratovil, Roark, Rosier, Springer 

 
Absent: Commissioner: Gulakowski, Hargraves, O’Savio, 

Svab 
 
Staff:       Rebecca L. Makely, Director 
           Cable and Consumer Services  

Susan C. Jones, Consumer Specialist III 
           Consumer Affairs Branch  
       Candice Hicks, Consumer Specialist I 
           Consumer Affairs Branch 
 
Guests:      Cheri Belkowitz  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:30 PM by Chairperson Kratovil.  
 
Minutes 
 
Chairperson Kratovil made the motion to accept the minutes. Commissioner Freedenthal seconded 
the motion. The minutes for the May 16, 2023, meeting were approved unanimously, 8-0-0. 
 
Report of the Director 
 
Director Makely informed the Commission that she is working on final year-end activities. 
 
Old Business   
 
Chairperson Kratovil inquired on the status of Commissioner O’Savio removal. Director Makely 
stated she notified the Clerk to the Board of the CPC’s request to remove or replace Commissioner 
O’Savio. The Office of the County Attorney is currently reviewing the recommendation and will 
let Director Makely know what action to take.  
 
Director Makely informed the Commission the taskforce led by Deputy County Executive Tom 
Arnold is working police statistics on Illicit Permitted and Unpermitted Establishments and will 
have their recommendations soon. Director Makely does not believe the recommendations by the 
CPC conflict with the Illicit Massage Business Taskforce.  
 
Director Makely stated staff for Chairman McKay was receptive to a proclamation to recognize 
former Chairperson John Fee.  Commissioner Rosier offered to draft a recommendation.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Commissioner Matters 
 
Commissioner Springer had no matters to bring before the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Freedenthal had no matters to bring before the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Kirk had no matters to bring before the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Kharat had no matters to bring before the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Roark had no matters to bring before the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Rosier had no matters to bring before the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Belkowitz spoke of his difficulty in getting pricing information for Verizon 
services. Commissioner Belkowitz asked when the franchise agreement ends. Director Makely 
stated it is 2026, but negotiations can begin within a three-year window. Director Makely stated 
that today the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) released a notice of proposed 
rulemaking (NPRM) on enhanced pricing transparency requiring cable and satellite TV providers 
to provide to consumers the "all-in" price for video programming services in promotional materials 
and on subscribers' bills. The notice was sent to the Office of the County Attorney for review. 
Director Makely will provide a link to the Commission.   
 
New Business 
 
1. Virginia Senior Medicare Patrol Presentation. Commissioner Freedenthal, Community 
Educator, provided an overview of the Medicare and Medicaid Fraud, Waste, and Abuse 
Prevention; levels of intent; examples of possible fraud; efforts to stop fraud, waste, and abuse; 
administrative actions; Health Care Prevention and Enforcement Action Team (HEAT); fraud and 
abuse laws; and law enforcement and judicial system actions.   
 
A discussion ensued on Medicare and improper insurance payments, statistics on medical identity 
theft, and sharing of insurance card out of desperation. 
 
Report of the Chairperson 
 
1. Board of Supervisor Engagement 
Chairperson Kratovil spoke about having a relationship with your Board of Supervisor (BOS) and 
developing your relationship with the context of your role as a Commissioner.  He encouraged 
each Commissioner by the next CPC meeting to schedule time with their BOS to discuss what the 
CPC is doing and plans on doing in the future. 
 
Commissioner Freedenthal suggested finding the staff member to your BOS that deals with 
consumer issues and keep them informed. 
 

2. Review draft subcommittees outline 
Goal: With one monthly meeting, it is difficult for the CPC to 1) juggle multiple initiatives, 2) 
focus necessary time and expertise, and 3) get things done in a timely fashion. By establishing 
Subcommittees as provided for in CPC Bylaws, smaller groups of Commissioners will be able to 
address these limitations, explore improvements and new initiatives, and overall better support the 
mission of the CPC to advance consumer protections in Fairfax County. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Community Engagement Subcommittee 
This subcommittee meets monthly to coordinate and support community outreach and marketing 
activities related to Department initiatives and provide content for Commissioner engagement.  
 
● Development of white-label content for Commissioners, including but not limited to: short 
articles, quick-hit consumer-focused newsletter pieces, and draft social media posts. 
● Engages with Staff to review Department outreach initiatives, including promotion and 
awareness efforts, suggests best practices, and explores additional opportunities. 
 
Data/Consumer Complaints Subcommittee 
Meets [quarterly] to review complaint data, trends, and outcomes. Identifies and prioritizes 
issues to surface with full CPC. Advises on plans (outreach campaigns, Department initiatives, 
content, and policies. 
 
Budget Subcommittee 
Meets [as needed] to support and advise on Department/Consumer Affairs Branch budget needs 
and initiatives, with particular emphasis on needs forecasting and planning for future fiscal years. 
Coordinates and aligns budget recommendations with current priorities, in consultation with other 
newly proposed Subcommittee initiatives. Provides periodic updates and recommendations to 
CPC. 
 
Policy Review Subcommittee 
Meets [bi-monthly or as needed] to review County code and relevant policy material within the   
jurisdiction of the CPC. Proposes redlined updates/modifications/modernizations to CPC for 
consideration and recommendation to the BOS. 
 
Financial Scams and Fraud Working Group 
Meets monthly or as needed to support Department education and outreach initiatives specific to 
financial scams and fraud, such as identity fraud. Recommends best practices, improvements, 
coordinates with Fairfax County Police Department and contributes content to Community 
Engagement Subcommittee as appropriate.   
 
A discussion ensued on procedural changes to the CPC Bylaws, what type of motions are 
needed, special or ad hoc committees, number of committees each commissioner would serve, 
and whether a motion is needed. Director Makely indicated the CPC Bylaws stated the 
Chairperson may appoint standing committees and a Chairperson for each with the consent of the 
majority of the Commission members present and voting.  
 
Chairperson Kratovil stated that each Commissioner at a minimum choose one to two 
subcommittees with rest as possible ad hoc committees.   
 
Director Makely shared the full County Attorney’s finding and legal opinion on the question as 
to subcommittees meeting in an all-virtual capacity.  
 
A discussion ensued on remote participation vs. virtual participation, possible policy changes, 
clarifying committees, advisory capacity, and information provided from staff to the 
commission.  
 
Commissioners will send suggestions to the Chairperson to provide clarity on the role of the 
committees. The Commission will rank their top three choices of committees. Director Makely 
will email the Commission the content from the County Attorney’s office.  
 
 



 

 

3. Motion Regarding Collaboration with Howard County Office of Consumer Protection 
and Montgomery County Advisory Committee on Consumer Protection Regarding Scams, 
Consumer Education, and Other Issues. 
 
Chairperson Kratovil stated that Howard County, Maryland and Montgomery County, Maryland 
are very interested in working with the Commission on consumer protection issues. Former 
Chairperson Fee and Vice Chairperson Gulakowski had virtually attended meetings with Howard 
County in the past. Chairperson Kratovil stated that both counties are wanting to leverage 
everyone’s expertise and resources to do some consumer education like scams, identity theft, 
credit reports and repairs. Chairperson Kratovil feels it would be beneficial to join forces to 
provide more resources to the residents.  
 
Chairperson Kratovil provided the motion for the Commission to review, keeping in mind of any 
issues with VFOIA rules and regulations.  
 
A discussion ensued on the selection of the two counties in Maryland and not the surrounding 
Northern Virginia counties, who gives the authority to participate in the meetings, interstate 
compact or agreement, not in CPC Bylaws, permission from the Board of Supervisors, only 
certain BAC’s that have agreements to work with other jurisdictions, implication of providing 

more than just information, and other location for CPC meetings.  
 
Chairperson Kratovil highlighted the points made by the Commissioners. Chairperson Kratovil 
asked about the CPC’s individual authority to attend functions as a representative of the 
Commission. Director Makely stated if a Commissioner is acting on behalf of the Commission, 
the Commission should have the discretion to vote on it. Chairperson Kratovil will provide the 
question to staff on this issue to run by the Office of the County Attorney.   
  
Chairperson Kratovil announced that at the July meeting, the CEO of the Identity Theft Resource 
Center will be providing a presentation on, “An Introduction to the ITRC: Overview of consumer 

and victim services, research, partnerships, and victim recovery tools and resources”. 
 
Director Makely mentioned that staff will bring the FY 2023 Annual Report to the July meeting.   
Director Makely reminded the CPC that their previously requested presentation on panhandling 
was also scheduled for the July meeting as noted on the meeting calendar. Chairperson Kratovil 
stated that both presentations will be presented at the July meeting.  
 
Chairperson Kratovil made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Freedenthal seconded the 
motion. The meeting adjourned at 9:24 PM.   



 



Consumer Protection Commission                                          

2023 Planning Calendar                                 

August 1, 2023

January 17 



February 21  Resilient Fairfax and CECAP Presentation

 Election of Officers

 2023 Items of Interest

March 21  Authorization to Advertise Public Hearing

April 18  Meeting Cancelled

May 16 

June 20  Virginia Senior Medicare Patrol Presentation by Commissioner Freedenthal

 BOS Engagement

 Review draft subcommittee outline

 Future briefings and activity

 Open discussion and ideation 

July 18  Meeting Cancelled

August 1  FY 2023 Annual Report

 Identity Theft Resource Center Presentation

September 19  2023 Taxicab Biennial Determination Report

October 17  Electrification/EV Charging Presentation 

November 21 

December 19 

Nomination of Officers

Chapter 28.1

2023 Meeting Calendar



 



 Commissioners 

6/2/2023 1 

   
Fairfax County Resident #1  Fairfax County Resident #13 
Jacqueline Rosier (Secretary)  Maurice B. Springer 
Appt. Expires 7/31/2025  Appt. Expires 7/31/2024 
   
Fairfax County Resident #2   
Michael J. Roark  Staff 
Appt. Expires 7/31/2023   
  Rebecca L. Makely, Director 
Fairfax County Resident #3  Department of Cable and Consumer Services 
Jason J. Kratovil (Chairperson)  703-324-5947 
Appt. Expires 7/31/2024  Rebecca.Makely@fairfaxcounty.gov  
   
Fairfax County Resident #4  Susan C. Jones, Consumer Specialist III 
Dennis D. Kirk  Consumer Affairs Branch 
Appt. Expires 7/31/2025  703-324-5877 
  Susan.Jones@fairfaxcounty.gov  
Fairfax County Resident #5   
Dirck A. Hargraves  Main Number 703-222-8435, TTY 711 
Appt. Expires 7/31/2023  Fax Number 703-653-1310 
  consumer@fairfaxcounty.gov  
Fairfax County Resident #6   
Triston “Chase” O’Savio   
Appt. Expires 7/31/2024   
   
Fairfax County Resident #7   
Pratik J. Kharat    
Appt. Expires 7/31/2024   
   
Fairfax County Resident #8   
Harold G. Belkowitz   
Appt. Expires 7/31/2024   
   
Fairfax County Resident #9   
Chester J. Freedenthal   
Appt. Expires 7/31/2024   
  
Fairfax County Resident #10  
Vacant  
  
Fairfax County Resident #11  
Paul Svab  
Appt. Expires 7/31/2024  
  
Fairfax County Resident #12  
Denis Gulakowski  
(Vice-Chairperson) 

 

Appt. Expires 7/31/ 2024  

mailto:Rebecca.Makely@fairfaxcounty.gov
mailto:Susan.Jones@fairfaxcounty.gov
mailto:consumer@fairfaxcounty.gov


 



DATE EVENT LOCATION # of Guests Event Time Staff

8/1/2023 National Night Out Reston Community Center 12:00 p.m. - 2:00 p.m. MDP

2310 Colts Neck Road SCJ

Reston, VA

8/1/2023 National Night Out Reston Town Center 2:00 p.m. - 3:00 p.m. MDP

11900 Market Street SCJ

Reston, VA

8/12/2023 Cathy Hudgins Community Day Cathy Hudgins Community Center 12:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. CH

Consumer Booth 12125 Pinecrest Road

Reston, VA

8/17/2023 Back to School Springfield Estates Elementary 3:30 p.m. - 5:00 p.m. SCJ

Consumer Booth 6200 Charles Goff Drive

Springfield, VA

8/24/2023 Consumer Connection Fairfax County 11:00 a.m. - 11:20 a.m. SCJ

Environmental Services Consumer Affairs Facebook

Restaurant Inspections and Food Safety 

Outreach Event Calendar

August 2023



 



1 
 

Resource Items 
 
Fairfax County Department of Cable and Consumer Services  
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer  
 
Fairfax County Consumer Affairs  
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/csd/consumer 
 
Fairfax County Consumer Affairs Facebook 
https://www.facebook.com/fairfaxcountyconsumer/ 
 
Consumer Connection: Park Authority: Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Access Strategy 
(July 20, 2023) 
https://fb.watch/l_y1ZBqwjE/  
 
Consumer Affairs Day: National Consumer Protection Week (March 9, 2023) 
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/channel-16/consumer-affairs-day-2023 
 
Information Items 
 
Leaf Collection May Be Discontinued in Fairfax County (More) 
 

https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/csd/consumer
https://www.facebook.com/fairfaxcountyconsumer/
https://fb.watch/l_y1ZBqwjE/
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/cableconsumer/channel-16/consumer-affairs-day-2023
https://northernvirginiamag.com/home/home-resources/2023/07/21/leaf-collection-may-be-discontinued-in-fairfax-county/


 

Leaf Collection May Be Discontinued 
in Fairfax County 
The county is seeking input from residents to determine whether it will continue the 
costly service in the 2024 season. 
 

By Maggie Roth July 21, 2023 

 
Fall leaves may be the furthest thing from your mind these days, but 
Fairfax County is asking residents to think ahead and help make an 
important decision about autumn lawn maintenance: whether to end 
its vacuum leaf collection service.   

The county Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
proposes ending its vacuum leaf collection service. About 25,000 
customers have the service that’s expected to incur a deficit of $1.3 
million by the end of 2024’s fiscal year.  

https://northernvirginiamag.com/home/home-resources/2023/07/21/leaf-collection-may-be-discontinued-in-fairfax-county/
https://northernvirginiamag.com/home/home-resources/2023/07/21/leaf-collection-may-be-discontinued-in-fairfax-county/
https://northernvirginiamag.com/author/mroth/
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/publicworks/leaf


A public input survey is open until August 18 for residents to weigh in 
on the proposal.   
As the program currently stands, residents within the participating 
areas set leaves out on the curb during designated times three times a 
season. Crews collect the leaves with vacuum equipment and 
subsequently turn the waste into mulch, which is distributed 
throughout the county. Residents can then get the mulch for free.  
Last year, the county faced significant challenges with the leaf 
collection service, including “collection delays, staffing shortages, a 
larger volume of leaves than normal, and inclement weather,” which 
resulted in delayed service, according to a news release.   
The county said residents have expressed concerns about safety when 
leaves are left in the road awaiting collection. Those concerns include 
blocked storm drains, pedestrians being forced to walk in the street, 
fire hazards, slip-and-fall dangers, and reduced on-street parking.   

It estimates that the 2023 season will incur an approximate $900,000 
deficit resulting from increased contracting and labor costs, plus an 
additional $400,000 deficit by the end of fiscal year 2024.  

The county said it will make a final decision by this fall. If enacted, the 
change will take place in the 2024–2025 season since customers have 
already been billed for the 2023–2024 season. Rather than paying the 
county directly, as with trash collection, customers within the leaf 
collection district are charged a tax based on their property value. If 
the program is dissolved, the tax would also be discontinued.  

In addition to the online survey, residents can provide input by 
texting or leaving a voicemail at 703-890-5898 (project code 2159). 
 

https://engage.fairfaxcounty.gov/leaf-collection#1
https://fairfaxcountygis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=12fb277a9c374fd6a786734d85d7b4fb
https://fairfaxcountygis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=12fb277a9c374fd6a786734d85d7b4fb
https://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/publicworks/news/dpwes-proposes-discontinuing-vacuum-leaf-collection-service-following-2023-2024-season
https://engage.fairfaxcounty.gov/leaf-collection#1

	CPC Yearly Calendar 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	CPC Yearly Calendar 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	August 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	CPC Links- 2023.docx
	Resource Items

	Leaf Collection May Be Discontinued in Fairfax County.docx
	Leaf Collection May Be Discontinued in Fairfax County

	CPC Cover Memo.docx
	FROM: Rebecca L. Makely, Director
	Enclosures

	CPC Yearly Calendar 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	August 2023.xlsx
	Sheet1

	August 2023 Memo _signed RLM.pdf
	Page 1


